Public Document Pack

Penalita House, Ty Penallta, ‘

Tredomen Park, Parc Tredomen,

Ystrad Mynach, ¥strad Mymach, c A E R PH’ '. LY
Hengoed CF82 7PG Hengoed CF82 7PG EVNOOR BWRDEISTREE SINGL

CAERFIFILY
>

www.caerphilly.gov.uk
www.caerffili.gov.uk

For all enquiries relating to this agenda please contact Cath Forbes-Thompson
(Tel: 01443 864279 Email: forbecl@caerphilly.gov.uk)

Date: 25th October 2017

This meeting will be filmed and made available to view in live and archive form via the Council's website.
The whole of the meeting will be filmed, except for discussions involving confidential or exempt items. The
webcast will be available for 18 months from the date of the meeting at www.caerphilly.gov.uk

It is possible that the public seating areas could be filmed and by entering the Chamber you are consenting
to being filmed and to those images and sound recordings being used.

You are welcome to use Welsh at the meeting, a minimum notice period of 3 working days is required
should you wish to do so. A simultaneous translation will be provided if requested.

If you have any queries please contact the Interim Head of Democratic Services by email
forbecl@caerphilly.gov.uk or telephone 01443 864279

Dear Sir/Madam,

A Special Meeting of Council will be held in the Council Chamber, Penallta House, Tredomen, Ystrad

Mynach on Tuesday, 31st October, 2017 at 5.00 pm to consider the matters contained in the following
agenda.

Yours faithfully,

Chris Burns
INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE

AGENDA
Pages

1 To receive apologies for absence.

2 Declarations of Interest.

Councillors and Officers are reminded of their personal responsibility to declare any personal
and/or prejudicial interest(s) in respect of any item of business on this agenda in accordance

with the Local Government Act 2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Code of Conduct for
both Councillors and Officers.

A greener place Man gwyrddach

oz

T 5o 7o | @ o
qdence ay beihany ’anguage or for Sy
mat

/

X
2
Gallweh oheby mewn unrhyw iaith NeY we!



http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/

To receive and consider the following report: -

3 Potential Settlement Agreement
1-6

4 To receive and consider the following item which in the opinion of the proper officer is an exempt

item taking into account consideration of the public interest test and that the press and public
should be excluded from this part of the meeting. The public interest test is attached

5 Potential Settlement Agreement.

Circulation:
All Members And Appropriate Officers



Agenda Iltem 3

R\
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

SPECIAL COUNCIL - 31ST OCTOBER 2017
SUBJECT: POTENTIAL SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

REPORT BY: INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 This report sets out the details of potential settlement agreements with two senior officers of
the Council to terminate their employment by mutual consent. This requires the agreement of
Council.

2. SUMMARY

2.1 Members will be well aware of disciplinary investigations which have been taking place
regarding three senior officers of the Council. These arose from the publication of a Public
Interest Report by the Wales Audit Office, followed by a police investigation and subsequent
charges which were later dismissed by the Couirt.

2.2 Following a Preliminary Investigation, the Council’s Investigating and Disciplinary Committee
(IDC) determined that there were matters which ought to be referred to a Designated
Independent Person for investigation, in accordance with the Local Government (Wales)
Standing Orders Regulations.

2.3 Following discussion at the IDC, and in agreement with the Leader of Council, discussions
have taken place with all three officers as to whether a resolution of the issues by way of a
mutually agreed settlement would be possible, as an alternative to entering the full
investigation stage.

2.4 This report sets out the extent of a provisional agreement which has been reached with two of
the three officers for consideration by Council. The cost of these settlements is considered to
be less than the estimated cost of continuing with the investigation for these two officers.

3. LINKS TO STRATEGY

3.1 This matter relates to internal matters of the council and there are no policy implications which
require consideration.

4. THE REPORT

4.1 As outlined above, this report details the terms of potential settlement agreements with two

officers, as an alternative to pursuing a full disciplinary investigation by a Designated
Independent Person.

Page 1



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

Having taken legal advice, the actual details of the proposed settlements are considered to fall
within the description of exempt information in accordance with the Local Government Act
1972. For that reason they are outlined in the exempt, part 2 of this report. However, the
terms of these payments, if agreed, will be required to be published in the Council’s end of
year accounts. For that reason, and in order to have the maximum permissible openness and
transparency to this process, the terms will be published at the conclusion of this meeting, if
Members approve them.

The exempt part of this report details the precise terms of the ‘business case’ in support of
these settlements. The expectation is that the Designated Independent Person stage of this
investigation would most likely take 12 months to complete. This would involve significant
costs. The full details are contained in the second part of this report. The costs of the
settlements being put before Members are such that they are expected to be less than the
anticipated cost of actually proceeding with the investigation.

The background to this matter relates to a uniquely complex set of matters which originated
some five years ago. Two decisions of the Council, one in relation to new pay structures for
20 senior managers in the authority, and the other in relation to the ‘buy-out’ of annual leave
and essential user car allowances (for 43 and 40 officers respectively) were found by the
Wales Audit Office (WAO) to have been unlawful. This arose due to the Wales Audit Office
findings that there had been failings in the decision making and governance arrangements in
both cases. The WAOQ issued two Public Interest Reports and the Council accepted their
findings.

In relation to the first of these issues — the senior pay review — the matter was reported to the
police by one or more individuals.

The matter was referred to Avon and Somerset Constabulary for investigation. In due course
three senior officers were charged with Misconduct in Public Office.

All three were suspended during the Crown Court proceedings, which took some time to come
before the court. At the request of Avon and Somerset Constabulary, disciplinary
investigations which had been commenced, in some cases, were postponed during the period
while the case was before the courts.

The charges against the three individuals were dismissed by the court in October 2015. At
this point, the Leader of the Council referred a series of potential disciplinary issues against
the three officers to the Council’s Investigating and Disciplinary Committee (the IDC) in order
that they could investigate and determine whether there were matters which ought to be
referred to a Designated Independent Person for investigation. All three were considered to
be ‘Statutory Officers’ and any disciplinary matters therefore were governed by the Standing
Orders Regulations (Wales) 2006. This statutory procedure has been withdrawn in England,
but remains in force in Wales. This is noteworthy because the legislation removes the
Council’s powers, as the employer, to impose any disciplinary action in relation to a statutory
officer unless and to the extent that it has been recommended following a full investigation by
a Designated Independent Person (DIP). This legislation is reflected in the disciplinary
procedure adopted by the Council in relation to Statutory Officers.

The IDC agreed to continue with the suspension of the three officers, although following
challenge this was subsequently changed, by mutual consent, to ‘Special Leave’ as the
statutory rules dictate maximum periods for which suspension could be in place, and these
had already expired even before the court case ended.

The IDC appointed a Preliminary Investigator to assist with their deliberations as to whether
any of the disciplinary issues amounted to a case to answer that required further investigation
by a (Designated Independent Person (DIP) as required by the legislation. His report was
received in September 2016. The IDC completed their consideration of the matters in March
2017, which culminated in a decision that there were some disciplinary allegations in respect
of each of the three officers which should be referred to a DIP for formal investigation. Not all

Page 2



411

4.12

4.13

4.14

4.15

5.1

of the allegations considered by the IDC were agreed as matters which should be referred on
to a Designated Independent Person, and many were dismissed. Members should be aware
that the fact that the IDC concluded there was sufficient evidence to warrant an investigation

by a DIP does not imply that anyone is guilty of any disciplinary offence and it is likely that all
three officers would vigorously refute and defend the allegations against them.

The sole purpose of the preliminary investigation was to determine whether there was any or
sufficient evidence in relation to the referred issues to warrant an actual investigation by a
DIP. This took 16 months. The Council incurred over £500,000 in legal costs during this
period and the employment costs of the three officers who were suspended, and then on
special leave, amounted to £680,000 during the preliminary investigation. This is in addition
to £1.4 million costs incurred during the period while the authority was awaiting the outcome
of the court case.

Where it is decided that a Designated Independent Person should be appointed, this must be
done by mutual agreement by all parties. Since the decision of the IDC to refer some of the
original disciplinary issues to a DIP in March of this year, two names of a possible DIP
candidates were submitted by the Council, and one by one of the three officers, but no
agreement could be reached. There was some further delay due to the Council elections in
May of this year and the need to reconstitute the IDC in order for them to deal with this matter.
The appointment of the DIP has now been referred to the Welsh Government who are
required by the legislation to appoint a DIP in such circumstances.

The best indications are, based on the experience of the preliminary investigation, that the
actual DIP investigation could take at least 12 months to complete. Given that it would be
likely to involve the collection of much more detailed evidence, and from a much wider range
of ‘witnesses’, than the preliminary investigation, it is possible that this anticipated timeframe
could extend further. Moreover, if there were to be further legal challenges during, and
possibly after the conclusion of the DIP’s investigation such as judicial review or claims for
unfair dismissal and discrimination, it is difficult to assess with any certainty just how long the
matter might yet take to determine to its final conclusion. It is believed that the cost of
employing the services of this Designated Independent Person alone will be in the region of
£100,000. However, this is an estimate as the person is not yet appointed and their costs and
their estimate of the duration of the investigation is unknown. It is quite possible that the costs
could well exceed this estimate. If these two settlements are agreed then there will still be
costs in engaging a DIP for the remaining case, but this is expected to be lower than if all
three cases were proceeding and this is dealt with in detail in the second part of this report.

This situation has been very costly and highly disruptive to the effective management and
administration of the Council. There are numerous officers employed in an interim capacity,
including the three senior posts of Chief Executive, Director of Corporate Services and
Monitoring Officer. There are numerous ‘back-fill' and temporary arrangements in the teams
supporting these officers, and this is not at all conducive to effective running of a large council
which is facing enormous financial and other pressures.

Over the past few months, the council has entered into negotiations with the three officers to
determine whether a mutually agreed settlement could be reached as an alternative to
proceeding with the full DIP investigation. Two of the officers, Deputy Chief Executive

Mr Barnett, and Head of Legal Services, Mr Perkins, have reached a provisional agreement
which is outlined fully in the second part of this report. In both cases, the cost of this
settlement is less than the cost of continuing with the investigation.

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS

This report does not relate to matters which would fall within the scope of the Well-being of
Future Generations Act.

Page 3



EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

6.1 The council has taken advice in relation to the employment law consideration relating to these
proposed settlements, including any equalities implications, and there are no relevant
considerations which need to be considered in that regard.

7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1 The financial aspects and implications of this matter are dealt with in detail in Part 2 of this
report.

8. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

8.1 If these settlements are agreed it will be for the council to determine how both posts should be
filled. Both posts are currently being performed via interim arrangements, but the positions will
need to be advertised and recruitment conducted in accordance with council rules.

8.2 Because of current and anticipated future financial constraints all vacancies are now
assessed before deciding whether to fill the vacancy, and this is particularly the case with
senior management positions. That exercise need to be undertaken.

9. CONSULTATIONS

9.1 The outcome of these negotiations — but not the actual detail of the settlement terms — has
been reported to the council’s Investigating and Disciplinary committee. The details have
been provided to officers from Welsh Government, the Wales Audit Office and the council’s
external auditors, Grant Thornton. These are dealt with more fully in Part 2 of this report.

10. RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1 The recommendations are contained in Part 2 of this report.

11. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

11.1 As outlined in Part 2 of the Report.

12. STATUTORY POWER

12.1 The Local Authorities (Standing Orders)(Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2014 requires
decisions relating to the remuneration of Chief Officers to be taken by resolution of the
authority itself. The Council’'s Constitution states that the “Determination of level and any
change in the level of remuneration to be paid to a Chief Officer is delegated to Council”. The
Localism Act 2011 includes any amounts payable by the authority to the Chief Officer on
ceasing to hold office as falling within the definition of ‘remuneration’ and this decision must,
therefore, be considered and taken by Full Council.

Author: Chris Burns, interim Chief Executive chrisburns@caerphilly.gov.uk

Consultees: Dave Street, Director of Social Services

Lynne Donovan, Head of HR

Andrew Southcombe, Finance Manager, Corporate Services
Clir Dave Poole, Leader

Clir Sean Morgan, Deputy Leader

Cllr Barbara Jones, Deputy leader

Page 4



Legal Advisors: Geldards Solicitors
John Bowers QC
Nathalie Lieven QC

Background Papers:
Wales Audit Office Public Interest Reports on Senior Pay Review and Buy-outs of essential user car

allowances and annual leave.
Wales Audit Office Special Inspection Report on Governance 2016

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Agenda ltem 4

SPECIAL COUNCIL — 31ST OCTOBER 2017

PUBLIC INTEREST TEST ~ EXEMPTION FROM DISCLOSURE OF DOCUMENTS
SCHEDULE 12A

SUBJECT: POTENTIAL SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT
REPORT BY: PRINCIPAL SOLICITOR

| have considered.grounds for éxemption of information contained in the report referred to above and
make the following recommendations to the Proper Officer:-

EXEMPTIONS APPLYING TO THE REPORT:

Information relating to any consultations or negotiations in connection with any labour relations matter
arising between the authority and employees of the authority. (paragraph 15)

FACTORS IN FAVOUR OF DISCLOSURE:

The remuneration of senior officers and staffing issues concerning those employed by the Council is
a matter of public interest.

PREJUDICE WHICH WOULD RESULT IF THE INFORMATION WERE DISCLOSED:

The report contains information relating to negotiations in connection with labour relations arising
between the authority and employees of the authority which have not yet concluded.

The information is not affected by any other statutory provision which requires the information to be
publicly registered.

Members are asked to consider these factors when determining the public interest test which they
must decide when considering excluding the public from this part of the meeting.

RECOMMENDED DECISION ON EXEMPTION FROM DISCLOSURE:

That paragraph 15 should apply. Whilst there is a need to ensure transparency and accountability of
a public authority for decisions taken by them in relation to the remuneration and staffing issues
surrounding senior officers this must be balanced against the fact that these matters have not yet
been concluded and that the disclosure of information contained in the Report is considered to he
prejudicial to the interests of the Council as revealing the full extent of the business case has the
potential to jeopardise labour relations. On that basis | feel that the public interest in maintaining the
exemption does outweigh the public interest in disclosing the information and that the report should
be exempt.

Date: 24" October 2017 Signed: ‘\ > Bethan Manners Post: Principal Solicitor

| accept/de.met=ssespt the recommendation made above.

Signed: O@V\"& &Nf‘“ﬂ Date: l\{;'! 'DY 3 Proper Officer
Page 7




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Agenda Iltem 5

By virtue of paragraph(s) 15 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Potential Settlement Agreement
	4 To receive and consider the following item which in the opinion of the proper officer is an exempt item taking into account consideration of the public interest test and that the press and public should be excluded from this part of the meeting.  The public interest test is attached
	5 Potential Settlement Agreement.

